



OREGON ADMINISTRATIVE RULES  
OREGON DEPARTMENT OF FISH AND WILDLIFE

DIVISION 97

PRIVATE FOREST ACCORD ~~[MITIGATION]~~ GRANT PROGRAM

635-097-0000

Purpose

The purpose of the Private Forest Accord ~~[Mitigation]~~ Grant Program is to fund projects that mitigate the impacts of certain forest practices on ~~[certain aquatic]~~ species covered by the Private Forests Accord Habitat Conservation Plan (HCP), which is to be submitted by the Board of Forestry to meet requirements of Oregon Laws 2022, chapter 33, section 11. The rules governing the Private Forest Accord ~~[Mitigation]~~ Grant Program are OAR 635-097-0000 through 635-097-~~[0110]~~0090, referred to herein as the "PFA Grant rules".

**Statutory/Other Authority:** ORS 496.012, 496.138, 496.146 & Oregon Laws 2022, Chapter 33, Sections 30-32

**Statutes/Other Implemented:** ORS 496.012 & Oregon Laws 2022, Chapter 33, Sections 30-32

635-097-0010

Definitions

These definitions apply for 635-097-0000 through 635-097-0110 only:

(1) "Agreement" means a documented mutual assent between the Department and a project applicant describing the project and the financial support to be provided from the Private Forest Accord ~~[Mitigation Fund]~~ **Grant Program**.

(2) "Applicant" means an eligible entity that provides a project application for the Private Forest Accord ~~[Mitigation Fund]~~ **Grant Program**.

(3) "Commission" means the Oregon Fish and Wildlife Commission.

(4) "Covered Activities" are forest practices conducted on private forestland excluding the application of pesticides or fertilizers.

**(5) "Covered Species" means the specific fish and amphibian species identified in the PFA Authors Report (dated February 2, 2022, and published by the State Forestry Department on February 7, 2022).**

~~(5)~~ **(6)** "Department" means the Oregon Department of Fish and Wildlife.

~~(6)~~ **(7)** "Forest practice", as defined in ORS 527.620, means any operation conducted on or pertaining to forestland, including but not limited to:

- (a) Reforestation of forestland;
- (b) Road construction and maintenance;
- (c) Harvesting of forest tree species;
- (d) Application of chemicals;
- (e) Disposal of slash; and
- (f) Removal of woody biomass.

~~[(15)]~~ **(8)** "[~~Regular~~]" Grant" means a funding opportunity through competitive solicitation.

~~(7)~~ **(9)** "Grantee" means an applicant that enters into an agreement with the Department to accomplish a project.

~~(8)~~ **(10)** "HCP" means the anticipated Oregon Private Forest Accord Aquatic Habitat Conservation Plan to be submitted by the State Board of Forestry to the National Marine Fisheries Service and the United States Fish and Wildlife Service consistent with requirements of Oregon Laws, Chapter 33, Section 11(1)".

~~(9)~~ **(11)** ~~["MAC" means the Private Forest Accord Mitigation Advisory Committee.]~~ **"PFA Advisory Committee" means the Private Forest Accord Mitigation Advisory Committee which is an advisory committee to the State Fish and Wildlife Commission and the State Department of Fish and Wildlife for the Private Forest Accord Grant Program.**

~~(10)~~ **(12)** ~~["Mitigation" for the purposes of the PFA Mitigation Grant Program is defined as implementing measures that offset and compensate for impacts of covered forest practices on HCP-covered species, based on the biological needs of the covered species.]~~ **"Mitigation" for the purposes of the PFA Grant Program is defined as implementing measures that provide conservation benefit to covered species.**

~~(11)~~ ~~["[Mitigation] Fund" means the Private Forest Accord [Mitigation] Fund established in Oregon Laws 2022, Chapter 33, Section 28.]"~~

~~(12)~~ **(13)** "PFA" means the Private Forest Accord.

~~(13)~~ **(14)** "PFA Grant Program" is the program authorized by Oregon Laws 2022, chapter 33, section 32 for the purpose of funding projects that ~~[mitigate impacts of forest practices.]~~ **provide conservation benefits to covered species.**

~~(14)~~ **(15)** "Quorum" means a majority of the ~~[MAC]~~ **PFA Advisory Committee** voting members.

(16) "Solicitation" is a notice that invites entities to apply for funding to the Private Forest Accord ~~[Mitigation]~~ Grant Program. The solicitation will outline the goals of the grant program, activities eligible (or ineligible) to be performed as part of the grant program, and application requirements, amongst other essential details.

(17) "Review Team" is a team of designated persons with interdisciplinary expertise drawn from entities deemed appropriate by the Department to evaluate grant applications based on evaluation criteria.

~~[(18) "Urgent Grant" means a time-sensitive, high-priority project in need of funding more quickly than available via a Regular Grant.]~~

**(18) "Tribe" means a federally recognized Indian tribe in Oregon. "Tribe(s)" means a federally recognized Indian tribe(s).**

**(19)** "Local government" has the meaning given that term in ORS 174.116.

**(20)** "Local organization" means an organization that:

(a) Is a special government body as defined in ORS 174.117, a federally recognized Indian tribe, a nonprofit organization or other organization identified by a provider of water project support by rule as eligible to receive water project support; and

(b) Operates in an area affected by a water project.

**Statutory/Other Authority:** ORS 496.012, 496.138, 496.146 & Oregon Laws 2022, Chapter 33, Sections 30-32

**Statutes/Other Implemented:** ORS 496.012 & Oregon Laws 2022, Chapter 33, Sections 30-32

**635-097-0020**

**Private Forest Accord Grant Program ~~[Mitigation Fund]~~**

(1) The Private Forest Accord Mitigation Subaccount (hereafter referred to as "PFA ~~[Mitigation]~~ Fund" or "Fund") shall consist of all moneys appropriated to the Department for deposit in the Fund or otherwise transferred to the Fund, and gifts, grants, contributions or other donations that are received by the Department from any public or private source and caused to be deposited and credited to the Fund.

(2) The Department shall fund projects approved by the Commission with funds from the PFA ~~[Mitigation]~~ **Fund** consistent with advice from the PFA ~~[MAC]~~ **Advisory Committee** and these PFA Grant rules.

(3) The Department shall expend moneys in the PFA ~~[Mitigation]~~ Fund only for:

(a) Projects recommended by the ~~[MAC]~~ **PFA Advisory Committee** to the Department, and approved by the Commission that meet eligibility requirements in OAR 635-097-~~[0070]~~**0050**,

(b) Projects that conduct outreach to further the purpose of PFA Grant Program, and

(c) Administrative costs associated with the PFA Grant Program.

(4) The Department and ~~[MAC]~~ **PFA Advisory Committee** shall submit a joint biennial report to the Legislature on the expenditure of funds for the PFA ~~[Mitigation Fund]~~ **Grant Program** and the status of funded projects.

**Statutory/Other Authority:** ORS 496.012, 496.138, 496.146 & Oregon Laws 2022, Chapter 33, Sections 30-32

**Statutes/Other Implemented:** ORS 496.012 & Oregon Laws 2022, Chapter 33, Sections 30-32

## **635-097-0030**

### **~~[Private Forest Accord (PFA) [Mitigation] Advisory Committee (MAC)] PFA Advisory Committee Purpose and Duties~~**

(1) The purpose and duties of the ~~[MAC]~~ **PFA Advisory Committee** are to:

(a) Review Department policies regarding the use of moneys deposited in the PFA ~~[Mitigation Fund]~~ **Grant Program** and make recommendations to the Department and Commission regarding the use of the moneys in the Fund, and

(b) Solicit and review grant applications under the PFA Grant Program as described in OAR 635-097-0040.

(2) The ~~[MAC]~~ **PFA Advisory Committee** shall consist of seven voting members and up to five nonvoting members. The composition of the ~~[MAC]~~ **PFA Advisory Committee** is as follows:

(a) Voting Members:

(A) Six voting members are appointed by the Governor, which shall include three members who represent the timber industry, and three members who represent nongovernmental organizations promoting freshwater aquatic habitat conservation.

(B) One voting member is appointed by the Oregon Conservation and Recreation Advisory Committee from among themselves.

(C) The term of a voting member is four years. Voting members may be reappointed but may not serve more than two full terms.

(b) Nonvoting members: The Department shall appoint up to five nonvoting members representing and as recommended by each of the following agencies:

(A) The State Department of Forestry,

- (B) The Oregon Watershed Enhancement Board,  
(C) The State Department of Fish and Wildlife,  
(D) The United States Fish and Wildlife Service, and  
(E) The National Marine Fisheries Service.

**(3)** ~~[(e)]~~ The [MAC] **PFA Advisory Committee** shall select officers for such terms and with such duties and powers it considers necessary to carry out the responsibilities of the [MAC] **PFA Advisory Committee**. In addition, the members of the [MAC] **PFA Advisory Committee** shall choose a temporary officer in the absence of the officers.

**(4)** ~~(3)~~ In undertaking the duties described in section (1) of this rule, the [MAC] **PFA Advisory Committee** may solicit and consider project recommendations from other grant programs such as the Oregon Conservation and Recreation Fund.

**Statutory/Other Authority:** ORS 496.012, 496.138, 496.146 & Oregon Laws 2022, Chapter 33, Sections 30-32

**Statutes/Other Implemented:** ORS 496.012 & Oregon Laws 2022, Chapter 33, Sections 30-32

**~~635-097-0040~~**

**~~Private Forest Accord Grant Program~~**

~~(1) The Commission may award grant funding to projects throughout the State of Oregon that mitigate impacts of covered activities on HCP covered species, with advice from the Department and the MAC.~~

~~(2) The Department, in collaboration with the MAC, may offer two pathways for funding projects:~~

~~(a) The Department shall offer a Regular Grant funding opportunity through competitive solicitation no less than once yearly. The Regular Grant funding opportunity shall be the primary pathway for applicants seeking funding from the PFA Mitigation Fund.~~

~~(b) The Department may offer Urgent Grant funding opportunities to time sensitive, high-priority projects outside of the Regular Grant funding opportunity. Projects seeking Urgent Grant funding shall demonstrate the time sensitive need to occur outside of the Regular Grant solicitation. In addition, they must demonstrate a meaningful conservation benefit for HCP-covered species as recommended by the MAC and as determined by the Commission.~~

**Statutory/Other Authority:** ORS 496.012, 496.138, 496.146 & Oregon Laws 2022, Chapter 33, Sections 30-32

1 **Statutes/Other Implemented:** ORS 496.012 & Oregon Laws 2022, Chapter 33, Sections 30-32

2  
3 **635-097-0050**

4 **Private Forest Accord ~~[Mitigation Fund Regular Grants]~~ Grant Program Solicitation**

5 The Department, ~~[-at the discretion of]~~ **in collaboration with** the [MAC] **PFA Advisory**  
6 **Committee**, shall offer [Regular] Grant funding solicitations for proposals pursuant to the  
7 following:

8 (1) [Regular] Grant funding proposals shall be solicited no less than once per year through a  
9 request for proposals.

10 (2) Interested applicants shall submit a project application to the Department by the deadline  
11 described in the solicitation.

12 (3) The Department, in collaboration with the [MAC] **PFA Advisory Committee** and review  
13 teams, shall review all [Regular] Grant funding applications against the Evaluation Criteria in  
14 OAR 635-097-0090 and any other requirements deemed appropriate by the Department which  
15 will be made available in the current solicitation.

16 (4) Project match may not be required for [Regular] Grants but may be considered during the  
17 review process.

18 (5) Project monitoring may be required with conditions made available in the current solicitation.

19 (6) The [MAC] **PFA Advisory Committee** may request that an applicant amend a project  
20 application's scope of work and budget to meet program priorities, and Department staff may  
21 assist with such amendments.

22 **(7) The Commission may award grant funding to projects throughout the State of Oregon**  
23 **that provide conservation benefits to covered species, with advice from the Department**  
24 **and the PFA Advisory Committee.**

25 **Statutory/Other Authority:** ORS 496.012, 496.138, 496.146 & Oregon Laws 2022, Chapter 33,  
26 Sections 30-32

27 **Statutes/Other Implemented:** ORS 496.012 & Oregon Laws 2022, Chapter 33, Sections 30-32

28  
29 **~~635-097-0060~~**

30 **~~Private Forest Accord Mitigation Fund Urgent Grants~~**

31 ~~The Department, at the discretion of the MAC, may offer an Urgent Grant funding opportunity~~  
32 ~~for critical need projects that are time sensitive and high priority projects that need funding~~  
33 ~~outside of the Regular Grant funding opportunity. All Urgent Grant funding project requests~~

shall submit applications pursuant to OAR 635-097-0070 through OAR 635-097-0090, in addition to the criteria below:

(1) All proposed projects for Urgent Grant funding may be required to:

(a) Provide a one-page pre-application to ODFW staff and a full application upon request,

(b) Attend a pre-application conference with ODFW staff,

(c) Present to the MAC on the proposed project prior to an award,

(d) Perform project monitoring,

(e) Have secured all project permitting or provide proof of submission,

(f) Have secured all landowner access agreements, and

(g) Be ready to implement upon award.

(2) Urgent Grants may be required to provide up to a 25% project match.

(3) Urgent Grants may be considered on a rolling basis, year-round, to eligible applicants.

(4) The timing of consideration of Urgent Grant funding requests shall be at the discretion of the MAC, considering available funds and other business.

(5) The MAC shall review all Urgent Grant funding applications against the eligibility requirements, application requirements and evaluation criteria pursuant to OAR 635-097-0070 through OAR 635-097-0090, and any other requirements deemed appropriate by the Department in collaboration with the MAC.

(6) The MAC may request that an applicant amend a project application's scope of work and budget to meet program priorities, and Department staff may assist with such amendments.

**Statutory/Other Authority:** ORS 496.012, 496.138, 496.146 & Oregon Laws 2022, Chapter 33, Sections 30-32

**Statutes/Other Implemented:** ORS 496.012 & Oregon Laws 2022, Chapter 33, Sections 30-32

## **635-097-0070**

### **Private Forest Accord [~~Mitigation Fund~~] Grant Program Project Eligibility and Authorized Use of Grant Funds**

(1) Eligible Applicants are any local, State of Oregon, or federal agency, Tribe(s), political subdivision of this state, college or university, non-profit or private corporation, or limited liability corporation. Individuals may partner with an eligible entity.

(2) An applicant may be deemed ineligible by the Department if they have had a previous project revoked for reasons listed in OAR 635-097-0100.

(3) A Grantee may only expend monies granted from the PFA ~~[Mitigation Fund]~~ **Grant Program** as authorized by a signed agreement with the Department for a purpose(s) authorized by these rules.

(4) Funding from the PFA ~~[Mitigation Fund]~~ **Grant Program** shall not be used for any prior or current compensatory mitigation obligations. Habitat projects funded by the PFA ~~[Mitigation Fund]~~ **Grant Program** cannot be used for the purpose of generating compensatory mitigation credits to offset **or account for** other compensatory mitigation obligations.

(5) Eligible projects include, but are not limited to:

(a) Removing structures that block the passage of aquatic organisms or repairing the structures to promote the passage of aquatic organisms,

(b) Placing logs or other wood-based material in streams to promote natural stream functions,

(c) Conserving, recruiting, restoring, or reintroducing beavers and their habitats for the benefit of ~~[HCP-]covered species,~~

(d) Developing or sustaining healthy watersheds including riparian corridors, wet meadow complexes and forested uplands thereby reducing burn intensity during fires and protecting streams from excess sediment discharge after a wildfire,

(e) Applying restoration treatments to stands of trees to enhance or restore historic species diversity that benefits riparian function,

(f) ~~[Supporting acquisition of land, and interests in land including conservation easements, to protect, enhance, or restore riparian areas or other critical habitat functions for HCP-covered species,]~~

**Supporting establishment of conservation easements on land other than forestland to protect riparian areas.**

(g) ~~[Acquisitions which result in legally protected instream flow to maintain or restore streamflows for the benefit of habitat for HCP-covered species,]~~ **Supporting acquisition of an existing water right for conversion to an in-stream water right, as described in ORS 537.348, to improve in-stream flow conditions.**

(h) Installing fencing or otherwise excluding grazing in riparian areas or around seeps or springs for ~~[HCP-]covered species,~~

(i) Installing off-stream stockwater systems or hardened watering gaps to reduce the effects of grazing on aquatic organisms,

(j) Undertaking other measures that effectively conserve or restore habitat for **covered species.**

~~[species covered by the HCP that is consistent with the Private Forest Accord Report dated February 2, 2022, and published by the State Forestry Department on February 7, 2022.]~~



(k) Projects may include funding requests for monitoring, maintenance, and permit administrative costs. Applicants may request reimbursement of pre-project costs if directly associated with the proposed activities in the grant.

**(l) Supporting the restoration of instream flows to improve conditions for covered species through a variety of methods including those described in ORS 537.348 and other transaction-based and infrastructure upgrade-based approaches to restoring streamflow.**

(6) Funds from the PFA Grant Program may be allocated to projects outside the standard grant solicitation process, based on criteria established by OAR 635-097-0070, 635-097-0080, 635-097-0090 and 635-097-0110.

**(7) When development or implementation of community engagement plans are funded as part of a project, a recipient of water project support that is a local organization or local government must use the Best Practices for Community Engagement around Water Projects (10 Best Practices in Community Engagement around Water Project.pdf) to invite and support meaningful involvement by representatives of disproportionately impacted communities in water projects funded through the PFA.**

**Statutory/Other Authority:** ORS 496.012, 496.138, 496.146 & Oregon Laws 2022, Chapter 33, Sections 30-32

**Statutes/Other Implemented:** ORS 496.012 & Oregon Laws 2022, Chapter 33, Sections 30-32

#### **635-097-0080**

##### **Private Forest Accord [~~Mitigation Fund~~] Grant Program Application**

Project applications for [~~both~~] Regular [~~and Urgent~~] Grants must be submitted on the most current form prescribed by the [~~MAC~~] **PFA Advisory Committee**. In addition, applicants must provide a written explanation if they cannot provide any of the information required in the application.

**Statutory/Other Authority:** ORS 496.012, 496.138, 496.146 & Oregon Laws 2022, Chapter 33, Sections 30-32

**Statutes/Other Implemented:** ORS 496.012 & Oregon Laws 2022, Chapter 33, Sections 30-32

635-097-0090

**Evaluation Criteria for Proposed Private Forest Accord ~~[Mitigation Fund]~~ Grant Program Projects**

All project requests shall be reviewed by the ~~[MAC]~~ PFA Advisory Committee, the Department, and additional review team(s) as deemed appropriate by the Department and ~~[MAC]~~ PFA Advisory Committee. Any project recommended for funding to the Commission shall, at the minimum, meet the following conditions:

(1) All project applications will be evaluated based on the following evaluation criteria:

(a) Clarity, technical soundness, cost-effectiveness, addressing the biological needs of ~~[HCP]~~ covered species, addressing conservation strategies ~~[identified by the PFA HCP,]~~ in a watershed context, readiness, measurability, available funding, capacity of the applicant, and any other metric deemed appropriate by the ~~[MAC]~~ PFA Advisory Committee or the Department.

(2) Project applications shall provide, at a minimum, the following:

(a) Well-defined and measurable goals,

(b) Measures to achieve project goals,

(c) A list of project proponents and collaborating and participating partners,

(d) The location and duration of the project, including the beginning and the ending date,

(e) Estimated project costs, including the amount to be funded by the PFA ~~[Mitigation Fund]~~

Grant Program and sources of other funding,

(f) A description of other conservation or natural resource benefits, if any, that may be supported by the proposed project,

(g) A monitoring plan to measure performance of the implemented project, and

(h) A list of necessary project permits and copies of collected permits, or the anticipated actions to collect the required permits. All Grantees bear sole responsibility to seek and obtain all necessary permits or authorizations that may be required to carry out such projects.

(3) The Department, at direction of the ~~[MAC]~~ PFA Advisory Committee, shall not recommend a project for funding to the Commission if the Department determines the project to be:

(a) Inconsistent with the intent of Oregon Laws 2022, Chapter 33, Section 11, and the Private Forest Accord Report dated February 2, 2022, and published by the State of Oregon Forestry Department on February 7, 2022,

(b) Contrary to sound biological, scientific, and engineering principles,

(c) Proposing inappropriate measures or methods to accomplish the project objectives,

- (d) Inconsistent with local, regional, and statewide laws, including land use planning goals, and governments' acknowledged land use plans, or
- (e) Violating Department or State of Oregon goals, policies, administrative rules, or management plans approved or adopted by the Commission.
- (4) Projects recommended for funding shall use the best available science and management practices, as determined by the Department, including but not limited to the following:
- (a) Demonstrating sound principles of watershed and/or species management,
- (b) Using methods adapted to the project locale,
- (c) Complying with state land use planning goals and is compatible with acknowledged comprehensive plans as required under ORS 197.180, and
- (d) Following professionally accepted practices resulting in ecological or watershed benefits.
- (5) The Department may reject incomplete project applications.
- (6) All projects must provide a benefit to one or more [HCP] covered species.
- (7) The Department, the [MAC] **PFA Advisory Committee**, or the Commission may require additional information to evaluate the project.

**Statutory/Other Authority:** ORS 496.012, 496.138, 496.146 & Oregon Laws 2022, Chapter 33, Sections 30-32

**Statutes/Other Implemented:** ORS 496.012 & Oregon Laws 2022, Chapter 33, Sections 30-32

## **635-097-0100**

### **Revocation of Private Forest Accord [~~Mitigation Fund~~] Grant Program Application Project Approvals**

The Department may revoke an approved project if it determines that:

- (1) Implementation of the project is inconsistent with the approved project scope of work,
- (2) The Department does not receive funding at the levels necessary to completely fund the Project,
- (3) Any of the design, permitting, or construction of the Project is not pursued with due diligence as determined by the Department,
- (4) The construction of the Project is not permissible under state, federal, or local law, or the Project is inconsistent with current State of Oregon and Department goals, policies, management plans, laws, guidelines, and regulations, as determined by the Department,
- (5) The Grantee does not abide by the nondiscrimination and affirmative action provisions of this [A]agreement,

(6) The Grantee otherwise commits any material breach or default of any covenant, warranty, obligation, certification or agreement under the project agreement,

(7) The Grantee has violated any term or condition imposed on the project agreement,

(8) The project does not meet its proposed objectives, or

(9) The project is inconsistent with current State of Oregon and Department goals, policies, management plans, laws, guidelines, and regulations.

**Statutory/Other Authority:** ORS 496.012, 496.138, 496.146 & Oregon Laws 2022, Chapter 33, Sections 30-32

**Statutes/Other Implemented:** ORS 496.012 & Oregon Laws 2022, Chapter 33, Sections 30-32

**635-097-0110**

## **Agreements**

**(1) Upon Commission approval, the Department may issue a work authorization letter to a Grantee authorizing the Grantee to commence project work and begin incurring expenses on a specified date that is before a fully executed agreement with the Department. To be eligible for reimbursement of expenses incurred before entering into an agreement with the Department, a Grantee shall meet the following conditions:**

**(a) Enter into an agreement with the Department for a project funded by the PFA Fund;**

**(b) Complete any reporting requirements outlined in these rules,**

**(c) Acknowledge and agree that any expenses incurred, or actions taken, prior to the execution of an agreement between the Department and the Grantee, are at the Grantee's own risk and expense.**

~~[(1) The Grantee shall enter into an agreement with the Department before initiating the project.]~~

~~[(2) The Department shall distribute no funds under a reimbursement agreement until the agreement is fully executed. All requests for reimbursement of funds must be accompanied by a progress report unless the agreement authorizes advance payments as described below.]~~

~~(3)-(2)~~ The Department may award advanced payments at its discretion as specified in a fully executed agreement. The Department shall not make advanced payments unless the agreement explicitly provides for it.

~~(4)-(3)~~ The Department ~~[shall]~~ **may** retain a minimum of 10 percent of project funds until it receives the required close of project report and evaluates the project for completion and compliance with the agreement.

1 ~~(5)~~ (4) If ~~[the Grantee]~~ **all the parties** ~~[have]~~ **has** not fully executed the agreement ~~[with the~~  
2 ~~Department]~~ according to the timeline in an approved proposal, the Department may ~~[revoke the~~  
3 ~~award]~~ **terminate funding,** unless the applicant requests, and the Department approves, an  
4 extension.

5 ~~(6)~~ (5) Following project completion, equipment purchased with project funds ~~[shall remain with~~  
6 ~~the Grantee or another approved entity. Equipment]~~ with a value above five-thousand dollars  
7 shall adhere to any additional post-project requirements stipulated by the Department, **and**  
8 **equipment with a value of five-thousand dollars or less shall remain with the Grantee or**  
9 **another approved entity.**

10 ~~(7)~~ (6) The Commission may award Grantee post-project monitoring and maintenance funding.

11 ~~(8)~~ (7) All agreements between the Grantee and the Department shall have a project expiration  
12 date.

13 **(8) The Department shall have the authority to distribute to Grantee additional funds not**  
14 **to exceed 10 percent of the approved budget to provide for administrative corrections that**  
15 **the Department determines necessary.**

16 **(9) The Department may consider approval of project modifications or amendments,**  
17 **including expansion of funded projects, with moneys remaining from the original project**  
18 **allocation if the purpose and intent of the amendment remains the same as the original**  
19 **project and the proposed activity is within the same watershed.**

20 **(10) The Grantee must complete all required report elements described in the grant**  
21 **agreement.**

22 **(11) The Grantee will allow the PFA Advisory Committee, Department members, or**  
23 **designated representatives access to the project area at a mutually agreeable time to**  
24 **monitor and evaluate the project.**

25 **Statutory/Other Authority:** ORS 496.012, 496.138, 496.146 & Oregon Laws 2022, Chapter 33,  
26 Sections 30-32

27 **Statutes/Other Implemented:** ORS 496.012 & Oregon Laws 2022, Chapter 33, Sections 30-32  
28